
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

MEETING OF THE CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION 
SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
DATE: WEDNESDAY, 7 SEPTEMBER 2022  
TIME: 5:30 pm 
PLACE: Meeting Room G.01, Ground Floor, City Hall, 115 Charles 

Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 
 
 
 
Members of the Committee 
 
Councillor Batool (Chair) 
Councillor Willmott (Vice-Chair) 
 
Councillors Crewe, Khan, Dr Moore, Riyait and Thalukdar 
 
 
Members of the Committee are invited to attend the above meeting to consider 
the items of business listed overleaf. 
 

 
For Monitoring Officer 
 
 
 
 
 

Officer contacts: 
  
 , 

Tel: 0116 454 5843, e-mail: jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk 
Leicester City Council, City Hall, 3rd Floor Granby Wing, 115 Charles Street, Leicester, LE1 1FZ 

 



 

Information for members of the public 
 
Attending meetings and access to information 
 
You have the right to attend formal meetings such as full Council, committee meetings, City Mayor & 
Executive Public Briefing and Scrutiny Commissions and see copies of agendas and minutes. On 
occasion however, meetings may, for reasons set out in law, need to consider some items in private.  
 
Dates of meetings and copies of public agendas and minutes are available on the Council’s website 
at www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk, from the Council’s Customer Service Centre or by contacting us 
using the details below.  
 
Making meetings accessible to all 
 
Wheelchair access – Public meeting rooms at the City Hall are accessible to wheelchair users.  
Wheelchair access to City Hall is from the middle entrance door on Charles Street - press the plate on 
the right hand side of the door to open the door automatically. 
 
Braille/audio tape/translation - If you require this please contact the Democratic Support Officer 
(production times will depend upon equipment/facility availability). 
 
Induction loops - There are induction loop facilities in City Hall meeting rooms.  Please speak to the 
Democratic Support Officer using the details below. 
 
Filming and Recording the Meeting - The Council is committed to transparency and supports efforts to 
record and share reports of proceedings of public meetings through a variety of means, including 
social media.  In accordance with government regulations and the Council’s policy, persons and press 
attending any meeting of the Council open to the public (except Licensing Sub Committees and where 
the public have been formally excluded) are allowed to record and/or report all or part of that meeting.  
Details of the Council’s policy are available at www.leicester.gov.uk or from Democratic Support. 
 
If you intend to film or make an audio recording of a meeting you are asked to notify the relevant 
Democratic Support Officer in advance of the meeting to ensure that participants can be notified in 
advance and consideration given to practicalities such as allocating appropriate space in the public 
gallery etc.. 
 
The aim of the Regulations and of the Council’s policy is to encourage public interest and 
engagement so in recording or reporting on proceedings members of the public are asked: 
 to respect the right of others to view and hear debates without interruption; 
 to ensure that the sound on any device is fully muted and intrusive lighting avoided; 
 where filming, to only focus on those people actively participating in the meeting; 
 where filming, to (via the Chair of the meeting) ensure that those present are aware that they 

may be filmed and respect any requests to not be filmed. 
 
Further information  
 
If you have any queries about any of the above or the business to be discussed, please contact: 
 , Democratic Support Officer on 0116 454 5843.  Alternatively, email 
jacob.mann@leicester.gov.uk, or call in at City Hall. 
 
For Press Enquiries - please phone the Communications Unit on 0116 454 4151. 
 

http://www.cabinet.leicester.gov.uk/
http://www.leicester.gov.uk/


 

PUBLIC SESSION 
 

AGENDA 
 

 
 

FIRE / EMERGENCY EVACUATION 
 
If the emergency alarm sounds, you must evacuate the building immediately by the 
nearest available fire exit and proceed to the area outside the Ramada Encore Hotel 
on Charles Street as directed by Democratic Services staff. Further instructions will 
then be given. 

 
 

 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 

 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interests they may have in the business to 
be discussed.   
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

Appendix A 

  The minutes of the meeting of the Children, Young People, and Education 
Scrutiny Commission held on 14 June 2022 are attached and Members are 
asked to confirm them as a correct record.   
 

4. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCMENTS  
 

 

5. PETITIONS  
 

 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on the receipt of any petitions.   
 

6. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND 
STATEMENTS OF CASE  

 

 

 The Monitoring Officer to report on any questions, representations, or 
statements of case received.   
 

7. SEND GREEN PAPER CONSULTATION RESPONSE  
 

Appendix B 

 The Strategic Director or Social Care and Education submits the response from 
Leicester City Council to the Government’s SEND Green Paper Consultation.   
 

8. NEW SEND INSPECTION FRAMEWORK UPDATE  
 

 

 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education will present a verbal 
update on the new Area SEND inspections framework from Ofsted and the 



 

Care Quality Commission.   
 

9. WORK PROGRAMME  
 

Appendix C 

 The Commission’s Work Programme is attached for information and comment.   
 

10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 

 

 



 

 
 
 
 
 

Minutes of the Meeting of the 
CHILDREN, YOUNG PEOPLE AND EDUCATION SCRUTINY COMMISSION 
 
 
Held: TUESDAY, 14 JUNE 2022 at 5:30 pm 
 
 
 

P R E S E N T : 
 

Councillor Batool (Chair)  
Councillor Willmott (Vice Chair) 

 
Councillor Khan 

Councillor Dr Moore 
Councillor Pandya 
Councillor Riyait 

Councillor Thalukdar 
 

 
Standing Invitees (Non-Voting) 

    
Joseph Wyglendacz  Teaching Unions 
 

* * *   * *   * * * 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 Apologies were received from Janet McKenna.   

 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 Members were asked to declare any interests they may have had in the 

business to be discussed.  
 
There were no declarations of interest.  
 
 

3. MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING 
 
 AGREED:  

 
1. That the minutes of the meeting of the Children, Young 

People and Education Scrutiny Commission held on 8 March 
2022 be confirmed as a correct record.  
 

 

 

1

Appendix A



 

4. TERMS OF REFERENCE FOR SCRUTINY COMMISSIONS 
 
 The Chair noted that the Terms of Reference for Scrutiny Commissions were 

set out in the Council’s Constitution.  
 

5. MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMISSION FOR 2022/23 
 
 The Membership of the Commission for 2022/23 was noted.  

 
The Chair noted that Gerry Hirst of the Roman Catholic Diocesan, had recently 
passed away. The Chair paid tribute to Gerry’s years of service on the 
Commission.  
 

6. DATES OF MEETINGS OF THE COMMISSION FOR 2022/23 
 
 The dates of meetings of the Commission for 2022/23 were noted.  

 
7. PETITIONS 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that none had been received.  

 
8. QUESTIONS, REPRESENTATIONS, AND STATEMENTS OF CASE 
 
 The Monitoring Officer reported that none had been received.  

 
 

9. REVIEW OF THE SCOPE OF THE COMMISSION 
 
 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education presented a verbal update 

on the overarching issues currently for the Services covered by the 
Commission. It was noted that:  
 

• Due to a number of factors, Children’s Services were entering their 
biggest period of change in several years.  

• The recent Independent Review of Children’s Social Care by Josh 
MacAlister and the reviews of the murders of Arthur Labinjo-Hughes and 
Star Hobson would both lead to significant change in Children’s Social 
Care Services.  

• There was now a new focus from the Government on prevention with 
regards to CYP entering care, Leicester was one of the priority areas for 
Family Hubs.   

• The cost of placements for Residential Home Services was increasing 
significantly. With the quality of more affordable placements being 
weaker.  

• There was a national staffing crisis in Social Work, with the prices for 
agency staff becoming excessive.  

• In Education, levels of attainment were lower than they should have 
been. It was felt that this was primarily driven by what happened during 
early years.   

• In SEND Services there was currently an accelerated progress plan with 

2



 

regards to the NHS.  

• In July the Leicestershire CCG would be replaced by an Integrated Care 
Board. There was a risk that the new organisation would focus 
disproportionately on adults and not give sufficient attention to health of 
younger people.  

 
In response to Members’ questions, it was noted that:  
 

• There was an in-house service for residential care which received strong 
ratings. There were plans to expand this in-house service but it would be 
difficult to provide a service which would be sufficient for all CYP who 
needed it in-house, given the range of needs.  

• The costs of providing the in-house service were similar to comparable 
private sector residencies. However the in-house service made more of 
an effort to create space for any CYP who needed it, and placement 
breakdown was far less common in-house.   

• Despite there not being a great amount of positivity towards social 
workers in the media, they provided an important service and made a 
positive difference in many lives. High profile cases of mistakes in this 
area were often complex.  

• Vacant beds in Leicester residential homes could be filled by other Local 
Authorities for a price. It was expected that the capacity from new 
homes opening would be filled entirely with CYP from Leicester.  

• Since the star of 2022, many permanent Council social workers had 
gone over to agency work or resigned. It was not currently possible to fill 
internal social worker posts, and prices for agency staff were currently 
inappropriate. Therefore, work was being undertaken to use the current 
social workers in the most efficient way possible, including reallocating 
staff on a temporary basis.  

• Exit interviews with departing social workers showed that they had a 
positive experience at the Council, but they were leaving for the better 
pay of agency work. This was due to other Councils outside the region 
who had recently received inadequate inspection results offering 
extremely high rates. Work was ongoing to provide a better offer for 
internal social workers outside of the pay package.  

• The apprenticeship approach in social work was well established, there 
were strict rules about what roles needed to be undertaken by a 
qualified social worker but expanding the role of apprentices was being 
looked into.  

 
Commission Members were encouraged to visit the in-house residential 
homes to see the level of service provided. 
 
AGREED:  

That the Commission notes the update.   
 

10. PROVISION OF TAXI FRAMEWORK FOR VULNERABLE PEOPLE 
 
 The Chair announced that due to Executive Members needing to leave the 

meeting early, the items would be taken out of order, with the taxi provision 

3



 

item being taken before the Education White Paper item.  
 
The Director of Adult Social Care and Commissioning presented a verbal 
update on the procurement process for taxi provisions for vulnerable children. It 
was noted that:  
 

• The Council currently supported the transport of an average of 1500 
CYP with disabilities from home to school. The current taxi provision 
cost £8m in the last financial year.  

• A reprocurement process was ongoing in 2019/20 but at the last minute 
the taxi companies involved refused the pricing changes before the new 
contract started.  

• A new reprocurement process resulted in a dynamic purchasing system 
which would come into force in the summer.  

• A 10% uplift was given to the taxi companies to help with recent sharp 
increase in the cost of fuel.  

• The option of an in-house taxi fleet had been explored, but it was 
determined that this would cause legal issues and issues with downtime. 
Therefore, it was found to not be a financially sustainable option.  

• The new travel policy would encourage families to have more 
responsibility in getting their own children to school. A focus of this was 
offering more personal transport budgets. Schools had also expressed 
an interest in providing transport directly.  

 
In response to Members’ questions, it was noted that:  
 

• It was anticipated that wider changes in the Service to encourage 
inclusivity would bring down taxi costs as there wouldn’t be as many 
CYP being transported across the city. 

• There had previously been a model of outsourcing to one taxi 
organisation. This created issues with the cost of downtime and 
maintenance and was abandoned. There were also issues with 
downtime for the in-house bus fleet. This contributed to the decision not 
to pursue an in-house taxi fleet.  

• No other Council’s had an in-house taxi fleet.  

• Any taxi company providing transport to school would have their 
insurance documents checked initially, alongside an annual check and 
spot checks at schools.  

• Other Council’s were also seeing a rise in taxi costs. 
 
Members asked for a report at a future Commission meeting, outlining the 
costs and savings, and tracking the progress and impact of the changes. It was 
also requested that this report contain comparisons with other nearby cities.  
 
AGREED:  

That a written progress report be brought to the December 
meeting of the Commission.   

 

4



 

11. EDUCATION WHITE PAPER AND SEND REVIEW 
 
 The Strategic Director of Social Care and Education submitted a report on the 

recent Education White Paper and the SEND Green Paper.  
 
The Principal Education Officer provided details of the Education White Paper 
and its implications for the Council, it was noted that:  
 

• The policy paper set out the Government’s vision for education from 
early years to university. 

• There were four major themes around which the proposed changes 
were based. These were:  

o An excellent teacher for every child. Proposals in this theme 
were: 

▪ Investment in Early Years workforce. 
▪ Improved access and reform to teacher training. 
▪ Commitment to raise starting salaries for teachers. 

o High standards of curriculum, attendance and behaviour. 
Proposals in this theme were:  

▪ A focus on literacy and numeracy. 
▪ A new arms-length curriculum body. 
▪ A national behaviour survey.  
▪ A new expectation of 32.5 hours a week spent in school.  
▪ Long term support for those excluded.  
▪ Greater expectations on Councils to engage with absent 

pupils.  
o Targeted support for children behind on maths or English. 

Proposals in this theme were:  
▪ Extra tutoring courses as a response to the pandemic.  
▪ Joined up support between SEND and Children’s Social 

Care.  
▪ Work with Virtual Headteacher to support Children Looked 

After.  
o A stronger and fairer school system that works for every child. 

Proposals in this theme were:  
▪ By 2030 all schools to be in a MAT or be in the process of 

joining one.  
▪ Councils to be able to establish MATs.  
▪ Clarity over roles and responsibilities within MATs.  
▪ The Council would remain responsible for admissions, 

safeguarding, and attendance.  
 

The Director of Adult Social Care and Commissioning provided details of the 
SEND Green Paper and its implications for the Council, it was noted that:  
 

• This was a consultation document containing 22 key questions about the 
proposed changes, the Council was currently collating responses to the 
questions. Commission Members would receive a copy of the responses 
before the deadline in July.  

• The key themes were improving outcomes for SEND pupils, creating a 

5



 

more positive experience navigating the SEND system, and delivering 
value for money for families.  

• It was proposed that a single national SEND and alternative provision 
system be developed.  

• An extra £1bn would be invested for SEND provision.  

• A major focus of the paper was improving provision for SEND pupils in 
mainstream schools.  

• There would be an increased role for alternative provision.  

• A new National SEND Delivery Board would hold partners to account in 
implementing proposals.  

 
In response to Members’ questions, it was noted that:  
 

• There was a limited focus on Early Years in the White Paper. However, 
it was felt that the focus should be on the first critical 1001 days, which 
was addressed by the Government’s Best Start for Life work.  

• There was a surplus of funded nursery places but poor take-up of those 
places.  

• Local schools were skilled at developing English skills for those who 
come to Leicester speaking another language.  

• The outcomes of Ofsted inspections for Local Authority maintained 
schools in the city had been improving and were recently strong.  

• Terms of Reference for the role of Council’s in forming MATs had 
recently been published.  

• There were concerns about the diminished role of Council’s in education 
under the new plans. However, it was felt that constructive engagement 
with the Government would help this.  

• New attendance guidance was issued in May 2022 with greater clarity 
on the penalty notice system.  

• Most schools already had 32.5 school hours a week.  

• There had been no indication of what the Ofsted 2025 Framework would 
contain.  

• Certain changes in the SEND Green Paper were already being 
implemented on a local level.  

• Mainstream Leicester schools were not in line to receive any extra 
funding proposed in the White Paper.  

 
Members requested a report on Early Years Services to be brought to a future 
Commission meeting, in particular in relation to childcare sufficiency.  
 
Members expressed concerns about the Education White Paper, with 
reference to the diminished role of Local Authorities.  
 
 
AGREED:  

That the Commission requests that a detailed report be brought 
to a future Commission meeting on Early Years Services.  

 

6



 

12. WORK PROGRAMME 
 
 Members of the Commission were invited to consider content of the work 

programme and were invited to make suggestions for additions as appropriate 
to be brought to future meetings. 
 

13. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
 There being no other business, the meeting closed at 7.36pm.  

 

7





SEND Green Paper Consultation  

Final Response from Leicester City SENDIB/SEND Transformation Partnership 

15 June 2022 

 

1. What key factors should be considered when developing national standards to 

ensure they deliver improved outcomes and experiences for children and young 

people with SEND and their families? This includes how the standards apply across 

education, health, and care in a 0-25 system 

To support a more inclusive system, we must ensure expectations are managed for all 

stakeholders and minimise the postcode lottery/service boundary effects: 

o Needs should be identified and assessed recognising the individual  

 support to enable C&YP to achieve standards and expectations and ambitions 

for them and their peers (reasonable person test). i.e. reasonable, affordable, 

and achievable 

o Appropriate provision made for all types of needs – at this time, alternative provision 

doesn’t cover the broad spectrum of needs 

o Standardised access and review of support and all processes 

 Standardise process for accessing support and being clear at what stage 

(BERA) 

 Standardise the support links across services health and social care eg 

complex and challenging behaviour and language 

 This will include making explicit Quality First teaching expectations. These 

expectations should link with the Whole School SEND resources. 

o Transition standards in the education system will support SENCos and other 

educationalists to be clear about best practice 

o Standards for coproducing and communicating with children, young people, parents 

and carers as expectations vary 

o A common language used with definitions which are clear to professionals and 

parents 

o Dedicated SENCO as a mandatory part of education leadership teams 

o Consider how C&YP with NO EHCP can be supported to access the right support in 

secondary and tertiary education 

o Access – Establish common register for C & YP with SEND across ICS; EHCP and 

SEN Support 

o Re-engaging NHS providers for Over 18 services - a statutory commitment to SEND 

for 18-25yrs old at Board level 

2. How should we develop the proposal for new local SEND partnerships to oversee the 

effective development of local inclusion plans whilst avoiding placing unnecessary 

burdens or duplicating current partnerships?  

We agree that this will give a clear focus on local SEND.  It must not duplicate existing 

partnerships and emerging systems eg Local Safeguarding Partnerships, Integrated Care 

Partnership.    

The Local SEND Partnership should be a statutory board to bring partners together – with 

greater accountability on partners that aren’t education.  Although there are different 

9

Appendix B



pressures for health, education and social care, we need to be enabled to be more 

integrated.  The Local SEND Partnership should report to the place-based Health 

&Wellbeing Board.  All partners must be at the table and enabled to be accountable. 

All partners including health social care, parents/carers/young people should be 

represented.  Local inclusion plans should be developed with all partners. 

Partnership needs to be culturally embedded, with collaborative messaging from all national 

stakeholders and Government Departments. 

Consider: 

 A key named person and deputy in each partner organisation including PCF to report 

into ICS/HWB/LA Cabinet and direct link a joint accountability through the ICB via SEND 

SRO/ SEND & CYP Exec Lead. 

 SEND ICS Partners to develop Inclusion Plan aligned to ICS Integrated Care Strategy 

and local priorities and agree responsibilities and funding, to be reviewed annually or as 

prioritise change. 

 Shared responsibilities could include areas across SEND ICS rather than aligned to 

individual organisation i.e., inform and respond to funding bids; EHCP; Joint 

Commissioning; Transition and Preparing for adulthood; development of personalisation 

agenda. 

 Partnership needs to be culturally embedded, with collaborative messaging from all 

national stakeholders and Government Depts. 

 Ensure there are agreed accountable roles within ICS for system and place. 

 There should be one lead exec SEND accountable person to coordinate the plan for 

each area in partnership. SEND partnerships require accountability and focus similar to 

same status given to Safeguarding/ Looked After Children.  

3. What factors would enable local authorities to successfully commission provision for 

low-incidence high-cost need, and further education, across local authority 

boundaries? 

These factors will support activity across LA boundaries: 

o Ensure we have a common clear definition of “high-cost” 

o Effective shared decision-making governance on low-incident and high cost at an 

ICS level through Joint ICS & Place-based SEND strategies.  

o Co-design and co-development with main stakeholders including Parent/ YP groups  

o Expectations need to be managed. The role of parents, schools, primary care needs 

to be clear as does the limitations of service provision.  

o Inclusive education offers linking to wider early help provision and family support 

offers.  

o Understand population data/ sufficiency/ 

o A more joined up Commissioning framework 

o Shared needs analysis, prevalence and benchmarking exercises with health partners 

and schools’ alliances.  

o Gap analysis about what locality can commission together to bring CYP back into 

local area – support and working on and jointly with county A) High cost needs and 

B) investment in colleges to provide provision 

o Standardising College approaches as they differ widely cross boundaries 

 Invest in college provision for high cost as well as the independent specialist 

providers 

10



4. What components of the EHCP should we consider reviewing or amending as we 

move to a standardised and digitised version?  

We agree with this proposal, to create a clear plan template which is understood by all 

children and young people, parent/carers professionals and stakeholders.  Developing the 

right digitisation (Leicester City is in the process of rolling out a professional portal and a 

parent/carer portal) will be key to smoothing the process and having transparency at every 

step. 

Additional aspects to consider: 

 Brevity of EHCPs – they should not be too long and readable on smartphones 

 BSL and new Deaf act – a digitised version may be possible  

 Advocates and navigators should be culturally competent 

 Set Outcomes and be clear about how to measure them, for example outcomes 

should be spelled out, with a drop-down option that includes progress being met, and 

thereby that the EHCP is no longer needed.   

 Varied systems across ICS and information provided being transferred into plan can 

be complex.   

 Review of Section C and G: Clear guidance and training.  Leicester City have 

created an aide memoir to assist health professionals in writing advice and reports 

for plans. 

5. How can parents and local authorities most effectively work together to produce a 

tailored list of placements that is appropriate for their child, and gives parents’ 

confidence in the EHCP process? 

In principle this will support an open and transparent process but this must also manage 

expectations and the reality of what is available locally.    

Additional aspects to consider: 

o A list of placements/menu of provision will require resource to manage this well – a 

framework/guidance will be required to manage expectations.   

o Important principle of keeping CYP local and provision appropriate to meet needs.  

o There should be guidance for stakeholders and parents about using the list of 

placements – for example – new providers are not necessarily best 

o Ensure a keep local approach and remove barriers to access provision 

o Potentially creates a greater risk of Tribunals if AP choice is made and there is no 

availability 

o Could Section 41 list be adapted for this? 

o Co-design and coproduction needed 

o An extended role for SENDIASS 

 

6. To what extent do you agree or disagree with our overall approach to strengthen 

redress, including through national standards and mandatory mediation? 

Overall approach of national standards will help strengthen redress, however there are 

mixed views on whether mandatory mediation would make the process less challenging.  

Locally, parent/carers inform SENDIASS regularly that they have already spent a lot of time 

corresponding with the LA and where the position does not change, they have the right to 

appeal via SENDIST. Adding mandatory mediation as another step may be perceived by 

11



parents as another barrier to their parental right and route of redress even further. The 

nature of mediation requires both parties to enter into it willingly.  

Consideration must be given to  

1. The quality of advice and the experience of the mediators giving the initial mediation 

information 

2. How the LA is enabled to ensure a decision maker attends all mediations 

3. Mediations being carried out in a timely manner so as not to delay the process and 

further create a lack of faith in the system. 

4. The capacity and funding to coordinate, manage and set up these formal mediation 

sessions with the relevant parties 

5. The nature of the parental request may not require mediation 

6. Making it clear that is it a process for reaching resolution, rather than a step towards 

Tribunal.   

7. The issue of private assessments/consultations:  Currently the reasons why parents pay 

for private consultations to obtain EHCP or LD funding is due to need for medical 

assessment. Independent assessments are based on individual need not population 

and therefore not fair to those who cannot afford this.  Independent assessments are 

often not the full picture on for example priorities in Health Commissioned by 

ICS/access and availability to meet needs in schools and colleges. 

8. How to manage any party coming to an EHC Assessment with the prejudged view of a 

particular educational setting.  

9. Creating a standard and setting out the expectations about what might be reasonable 

given a moderated view of the child’s level of need.  

10. A fair and transparent process with a lay person on panel should be standard. 

 

7. Do you consider the current remedies available to the SEND Tribunal for disabled 

children who have been discriminated against by schools effective in putting children 

and young people’s education back on track? 

Tribunal directed decisions should not fall solely on the Local Authority to act upon, for 

example in an EHCP where particular health needs are not identified but subsequently 

Tribunal directs provision is required, we have experienced that this then becomes a Local 

Authority responsibility to commission. 

 

8. What steps should be taken to strengthen early years practice with regard to 

conducting the two-year-old progress check and integration with the Healthy Child 

Programme review? 

 National standards for the 2 year check and on the quality of referrals.  Health 

visitors should be accountable and trained.  It is important to strengthen links with 

Public Health with Early Years Support services and into Family Hubs.  

 Include early years checks within Nursey and school placements to be assured that 

the necessary checks have been carried out and not omitted 

 Mandated shared register by General Practice on all Early Years checks conducted 

and outcomes, especially where SEND could be included 

 Recruitment is a significant issue for the Early Years sector, and this is linked to low 

pay. The local partnership will need to be proactive in ensuring that the more 

marginalised voices of the early years sector are heard.    

12



 Align the training of staff with Workforce Capacity and Capability 

 Educational Psychologists (Registered with the Health & Care Professions Council to 

work with children and young people from birth to 25 years) and Early Years 

Specialist Teachers & Portage practitioners could play a key role at this stage, 

especially if there is scope for joint funding the specialist and skilled workforce for an 

early years partnership – across settings, childminders and parent/carers. 

 

9. To what extent do you agree or disagree that we should introduce a new mandatory 

SENCo NPQ to replace the NASENCo? 

We agree with proposing a new mandatory SENCo NPQ as long as the qualification is not 

of a lower standard than the NASENCo qualification.  It must include the SEND Code of 

Practice and learning about the BERA/graduated approach as a mandatory part of the 

learning programme.   

Other aspects to consider: 

 Enabling the SENCo to have authority and impact on change in the school/college/ 

early years setting.   

 Having a Level 3 SENCo qualification 

 

10. To what extent do you agree or disagree that we should strengthen the mandatory 

SENCo training requirement by requiring that headteachers must be satisfied that the 

SENCo is in the process of obtaining the relevant qualification when taking on the 

role? 

We agree with the proposal to strengthen SENCo training.  In order to support SEND and 

Inclusion in schools, the SENCo must be a dedicated role and a member of the school 

senior leadership.  Ofsted should strengthen their support of this governance in the school 

system. 

 

11. To what extent do you agree or disagree that both specialist and mixed MATs should 

coexist in the fully trust-led future? This would allow current local authority 

maintained special schools and alternative provision settings to join either type of 

MAT. 

A mixed MAT would create a better more inclusive system which will provide a closer cross-

fertilisation of expertise and support across the MAT, enabling the development of a 

graduated provision across the MAT. 

 

It is critical that Dedicated Specialist Provisions in MATs engage with Local Authority 

support services around early intervention and the graduated response to ensure the 

Inclusion is promoted. 

 

12. What more can be done by employers, providers and government to ensure that 

those young people with SEND can access, participate in and be supported to achieve 

an apprenticeship, including though access routes like Traineeships? 

Consideration should be given to  

13



 a lower level Apprenticeship qualification to level 2   

 Strengthen support to employers about being disability aware and to expand their 

opportunities for apprentices with lower level qualifications. 

 Adjustment passports and strengthened messaging around reasonable adjustments 

would be very helpful for both young people and potential employers 

 The National Funding Programme for apprenticeships and traineeships should be 

strengthened to ensure there is capacity in the system for example to enable 

Apprenticeship coordinators/Coaches (who work directly with young people in 

colleges for eg) to support the growing numbers of young people with SEND. 

 Government campaigns to support a change in attitude and culture for employers 

and for parent/carers not to hold back their young people’s ambitions/abilities. 

 Families who receive Carers allowance/benefits allowance should not be adversely 

affected if their young person with SEND gets onto apprenticeship and/or 

traineeship. 

 This should be cross referenced to the National Disability Strategy 

 Ensure there is co-produced messaging with DWP. 

 Ensure there is a pathway/onward destination for supported internships 

 Ensure those who are NEET are not left behind 

 The Educational Psychology profession (Registered to work with young people up to 

the age of 25 years) and Specialist Teachers have something more to offer in the 

Post-16 sector, including helping employers to engage understanding in reasonable 

adjustments, as happens in school. Also the continuing support and advisory role 

with parent/carers. 

 SEND investors award, where they advertise inclusion off SEND placements and 

become one off the measurements for successful business. Could the government 

provide a Grant to encourage the above and obtained more placements 

 

13. To what extent do you agree or disagree that this new vision for alternative provision 

will result in improved outcomes for children and young people? 

The new vision, with appropriate resource and funding for new responsibilities, should help 

strengthen the ability to improve outcomes.  It is appropriate that schools are accountable 

for Alternative Provision for their learners.   

Considerations: 

 All stakeholders must be clear about the quality measures to be met for improved 

outcomes.  

 The notion of Alternative Provision may move children & young people further away 

from inclusion 

 Consider less divisive terminology:  using ‘complementary’ rather than ‘alternative’ 

provision.   

 Consider if all children should be on a school roll, with complementary provision.   

 This provision, with funding and responsibilities, should also offer progression 

towards improving stated outcomes and achieving qualifications.  

 The qualifications of staff in these provisions should be equal to teaching 

qualifications.   

 

14



14. What needs to be in place in order to distribute existing funding more effectively to 

alternative provision schools to ensure they have the financial stability required to 

deliver our vision for more early intervention and re- integration?  

We agree that funding should be distributed to PRU APs to operate a graduated approach.  

There should be flexibility to allow for an early intervention approach wider than just 

commissioning to AP schools.  Consideration should be given to the process of moderation, 

perhaps with special schools, so that funding could become more predictable. 

15. To what extent do you agree or disagree that introducing a bespoke alternative 

provision performance framework, based on these five outcomes, will improve the 

quality of alternative provision? a bespoke AP performance framework, based on the 

5 outcomes improve the quality of AP?  

(Effective outreach support, improved attendance, reintegration, academic attainment, with a focus on English 

and maths, successful post-16 transitions) 

We agree that an AP performance framework with those 5 outcomes should improve the 

quality of Alternative Provision including PRUs and we are in tune with this vision.   There 

should be flexibility in choice of outreach support as this is also provided through the 

Local Authority SEND support service.  However, academic attainment for children and 

young people with SEND should not necessarily focus on English and maths but 

recognising appropriate vocational qualifications and/or functional skills. The focus should 

be on the right attainment for the young person.  Schools must have a duty to reintegrate 

children back and where excluded, have a time limited program with a view to return to 

school.  The return to school should include an in-depth assessment and recommendations 

to inform schools of the child’s learning, their triggers and their needs for reintegration.  

Outcome measures are critical for the individual child eg SEMH curriculum, emotional 

wellbeing, self-regulation to support reintegration.  Following reintegration, attendance and 

outcomes should be monitored. 

16. To what extent do you agree or disagree that a statutory framework for pupil 

movements will improve oversight and transparency of placements into and out of 

alternative provision? 

The framework will also enable monitoring and checks for supporting pupils.   

This should be standardised approach not specific to SEND and health partners and should 

be included in the formal notification of pupil movements plus the planning of as required. 

 

17. What are the key metrics we should capture and use to measure local and national 

performance? Please explain why you have selected these.  

 New inclusion dashboards, to provide a timely local and national picture of how the 

system is performing 

 Proposed performance metrics must take account of health intervention and 

provision. 

 All of SEND - National standards that are going to be introduced 

 Outcome focused metrics, linked to the national standards 

 Inclusion measures from schools, measuring attendance and exclusion 

 Appropriate curriculum offer to meet the needs of a range of children and this means 

a reduced curriculum 

15



 Use of Alternative Provision 

 Voice of children who have SEND as part of Ofsted inspection of local schools, 

 Local metrics on consult on refusal for EHCP, fair access data, managed moves  

 BERA checklist / challenges 

 Joint Commissioning Strategy and action plan (SEND ICS Priorities) 

 SEND Transition/preparing for adulthood Strategy and yearly action plan (show clear 

process and pathway for key transition stages inc. adulthood) 

  Referral to treatment times – key SEND Inc. recovery information 

  EHCP assessments and plans – time periods  

 Assessed optimum level of functioning – child attaining 

18. How can we best develop a national framework for funding bands and tariffs to 

achieve our objectives and mitigate unintended consequences and risks?  

 Ensure that the banding and tariffs are in line with high cost funding allocated to LAs.    

 Ensure new national framework of banding and price tariffs is matched to levels of 

need and types of education provision set out in the national standards. 

 Funding bands should reflect the actual cost of the provision required and increase 

in line with inflation and reflective of different geographic areas.    Disadvantaged 

funding pots that are ringfenced for children and young people with SEND should 

continue  

 

 Funding bands should be split into 3 parts: Special education, Health and Social care 

elements.  The government should define the criteria for funding band splits which 

gives clarity to the responsibilities 

 

19. How can the National SEND Delivery Board work most effectively with local 

partnerships to ensure the proposals are implemented successfully? 

 Ensure this is a two way process where regional send advisors take back issues/etc 

to national.   

 Commission analysis to better understand the support that CYP with SEND need 

from the health workforce 

 

20. What will make the biggest difference to successful implementation of these 

proposals? What do you see as the barriers to and enablers of success?  

 

The biggest difference to successful implementation will be: 

 Deliver clarity in roles and responsibilities with every partner having a clear role to 

play, and having the levers to fulfil their responsibilities 

 DfE’s new Regions Group to take responsibility for holding LAs and MATs to account 

for delivering for SEND 

 Provide statutory guidance to Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) to set out clearly how to 

discharge their SEND statutory responsibilities 

 Ofsted/CQC to deliver an updated Local Area SEND Inspection Framework 

Barriers: 

 Tribunals that pit parents against services 

16



 Competing Ofsted and Standards agenda 

 Funding and AP funding: extra burdens but no extra funding or funding is not clear 

 The SEND code of practice didn’t take into account the extended responsibilities and 

funding for post 19 up to 25. 

o Changing legal issues from children act to care act.  Transitions doesn’t set 

up yp to access health/social care support.  Over reliance.  

o Link into adults is critical for provision. 

o Education of parents to understand the range of support available to care for 

children/young person as opposed to care of yp as an adult. 

 PfA should be done earlier but resourcing is not available to do this prep properly to 

avoid crisis management as the yp gets older and more expensive support is 

required as an adult. 

Enablers:  

 Create the right conditions in secondary schools to mandate PfA for cyp with SEND. 

 Ofsted to monitor PfA in secondary schools. 

 Destination data and outcomes at 19 should be reconsidered.  

 Communications and system positioning (tribunals/ofsted) is needed to support 

inclusion messaging.  More national comms about inclusive schools.  Good 

destination data.   

 

21. What support do local systems and delivery partners need to successfully transition 

and deliver the new national system?  

There needs to be opportunity for quality teams to work with schools to give a continuum of 

provision and standard thresholds. 

There needs to be high quality local teams, including Local Authority and Health staff with 

school/college representatives, to drive forward the changes needed, to provide the support 

and challenge.  There needs to be a clear, shared language.  This will require funding and 

change would not be expected within a short period of time. 

 

22. Is there anything else you would like to say about the proposals in the green paper?  

Many of the ambitions in the SEND Green Paper are welcome and offer real hope for 
reform. We recognise that it will take several years for the proposals to be taken through 
the legislative process, before coming into law. In the meantime, therefore, making 
additional high needs funding available via the ‘safety valve’ and ‘Delivering Better Value in 
SEND’ programmes is welcome, but DfE must go further and develop a plan that enables 
every council to eliminate its Dedicated Schools Grant deficit. 
 
In Summary: 

 The proposals will require the need for greater support and capacity in this sector 
and must be firmly supported by culture change 

 Some proposals for removing identified barriers may run the risk of simply creating 
other, new barriers for families eg 

o Mandatory mediation carries many issues with it 
o There is a concern that the Green Paper may reinforce a ‘deficit view’ of 

additional needs and disabilities as a ‘medical issue and risk` where NHS are 
required to intervene, as opposed to a ‘strengths and ambitions’ approach   

 The national system is in crisis. Overhauling it requires funding and recognition of 
the system workforce issues (demand, capacity, skills mix) 

17



 Consistency would be welcome (i.e. reduction of the postcode lottery situation), 
although national prescription is potentially difficult since it doesn’t necessarily 
acknowledge local variation/need 

 Parent support services that help parents know how to support their child could 
significantly help change the picture and reduce demand 

o This systemic and cultural change will take time to create confidence and set 
family expectations 

 EHCPs should not be seen as the panacea for children with SEND to get the right 
support at the right time in the right place. Ceasing an EHCP should not be seen as 
a loss, but rather as a successful outcome, and should end at the right time, rather 
than arbitrarily at age 25.  This needs to be communicated to parents 

 Clarity is needed around:  
o frameworks and standards   
o roles and responsibilities - with every partner having a clear role to play, and 

having the levers to fulfil their responsibilities 
o protocols of support 
o accountability and escalation 
o Clear and common language and terminology and messaging is critical – eg 

the definition of ‘AP’ (Alternative Provision) varies within DfE proposals 

 DfE’s new Regions Group should take responsibility for holding Local Authorities and 
Multi-Academy Trusts (MATs) to account for delivering the SEND agenda 

 Statutory guidance should be provided to NHS Integrated Care Boards (ICBs) to set 
out clearly how to discharge SEND statutory responsibilities 

 The use of local multi-agency panels is supported. In the local area, the NHS have 
forums in place with the three Local Authorities.  These are crucial for joint 
assessment of need, assessing capacity of local available services and key 
escalation routes for exceptional clinical decisions. Governance is critical, with a 
Leicester City (Place level) SEND Transformation Partnership reporting to the Health 
and Wellbeing Board 

 Support across the system for Inclusion:  Ofsted/CQC should deliver an updated 
Local Area SEND Inspection Framework which enables inclusion 

 Successful delivery will require the removal of key barriers: 
o Tribunals that pit parents against services in an adversarial manner 
o Competing/conflicting Ofsted and Standards agendas 
o Unclear funding around extra burdens and Alternative Provision 
o Funding issues that cause Preparing for Adulthood to start too late, leading to 

crisis management and more expensive support 
 

Not much reference is made in these proposals or in the consultation to SEN Support or 

Young Carers.  

18



Page 1 of 4 
 

Updated July 2022 
 

Children, Young People and Education (CYPE) Scrutiny Commission  

WORK PROGRAMME 2022 - 23 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting Items Actions Arising 
 

Progress 
 

14 June 
2022 
 

1) Provision of Taxi Framework for Vulnerable 
People  

2) Review of High Needs Block – SEN 
Support for Pupils in Mainstream 

3) Education White Paper – high level 
assessment 

 

   

6 
September 
2022 

1) SEND Green Paper – consultation 
response 
2) New SEND inspection framework - update 
3) Youth Justice Plan Karen Manville - 
deferred 
 

   

25 October 
2022 
 
 
 
 
 

 

1) Virtual School:  
2) Pupil placed planning 
3) Verbal update on Covid in schools 
4) Residential children’s homes 
5) Family hubs 
6) Verbal update Ash Field Academy Resi 

Consultation 
7) SEND Accelerated Progress Plan – update 

8) Youth Justice Plan: Karen Manville 

4) Performance Reporting Q1 update 

  

19

A
ppendix C



Page 2 of 4 
 

Updated July 2022 
 

Meeting 
Date 

Meeting Items Actions Arising 
 

Progress 
 

9)  

10)  

Tuesday 6th 
December 
2022 

1) Impact on children’s learning of the impact of 
Covid (Primary schools) 

2) Update on Taxi Reprovision  
3) Update – bandings moderation process 
4) Ash Field Academy Banding Update 

  

Tuesday 
24th 
January 
2023 

1) Draft General Fund 2023/24 Revenue Budget 
& Draft Capital Programme  

  

Tuesday 
21st March 
2023 

1) Impact on children’s learning of the impact of 
Covid (Secondary schools) 

2) Ash Field Academy Residential Consultation 
Report 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

20



Page 3 of 4 
 

Updated July 2022 
 

 

 

 

Draft Forward Plan / Suggested Items for 2022/23 

Topic Details / Progress Proposed Date 
 

Performance Reporting and data 
monitoring, including  
Quarterly and Qualitative Reports 

The commission to receive regular ‘Quarterly Quality Assurance & 
Performance’ Reports - (‘Performance Book’ and ‘Dashboard’ is sent 
to members as background information). 
 
Note: a request for the sharing of LADO reports to resume, was given in 
the Oct 2021 meeting by outside representatives.   

STANDING ITEM 
 

COVID19 Update and Vaccinations in 
Schools 

This was requested as a standing item by Chair following the Oct 
2021 meeting. 

STANDING ITEM 

Safeguarding Partnership Annual 
report 

To receive a report for members consideration.  
 

tbc  

School Attendance Annual Report 
(incorporating update on Children Missing 
Education and Elective Home Education)  

To receive a report on progress for members consideration tbc 

Report on Multisystemic Therapy-Child 
Abuse and Neglect (MST-CAN) & 
Functional Family Therapy (FFT) 
intervention programmes (Annual Report) 

To receive a report on progress for members consideration Oct 2022? 

Virtual school head teacher  tbc 

Adventure playgrounds Item carried over from the previous work programme. tbc 

OFSTED engagement  Commission aware of potential updates that may be given during 
this municipal year. 

TBC 

21



Page 4 of 4 
 

Updated July 2022 
 

Topic Details / Progress Proposed Date 
 

How schools have coped with national 
exams and pressures  
 

further detail at a future meeting, once data relating to the pattern 
of grades is collated in February 2022 (requested by Cllr Cole in 
June’s Agenda Meeting) 

TBC 

Draft Revenue Budget Report  Standard item to go to all Commissions Jan 23 

School Nursing Provision Joint Item with Health and Well-being Scrutiny Commission tbc 

   

 

22


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
	7 SEND GREEN PAPER CONSULTATION RESPONSE
	9 WORK PROGRAMME

